

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35  
36  
37  
38  
39  
40  
41  
42  
43  
44  
45  
46  
47  
48  
49  
50  
51  
52  
53  
54  
55

**RESOLUTION #3-2015**

**GENERAL CODE OF ONEIDA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #**

**Ordinance Amendment offered by Forestry, Land and Recreation Committee**

**WHEREAS**, the Oneida County Forestry Department is responsible for the ongoing maintenance of County Forest Recreation areas and trails, and

**WHEREAS**, the Oneida County Forestry Department is aware that recreational opportunities, activities and equipment change over time, and

**WHEREAS**, existing ordinances need to be adjusted to address these changes.

**NOW, THEREFORE, THE ONEIDA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DOES  
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:**

Section 1. Any existing ordinances, codes, resolutions, or portions thereof in conflict with this ordinance shall be and hereby are repealed as far as any conflict exists.

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect the day after passage and publication as required by law.

Section 3. If any claims, provisions or portions of this ordinance are adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected thereby.

Section 4. Following sections of the General Code of Oneida County, Wisconsin, are amended as follows [additions noted by underline, deletions noted by strikethrough]:

Section 14.10 (4)

- (a) Enterprise ~~Primitive Cross-Country Skiing, and Snowshoe~~ Winter Silent Sports Trail.
- (b) Washburn Silent Sports Trails System.

Section 14.13 (20)

(b) No walking, snowshoeing, bicycling, sledding, or mode of travel other than that of skiing is allowed on trails designated and periodically groomed for cross-country skiing during periods when said trails are snow covered. The following silent sports trails are included in this category:

- 1. That portion of the Washburn Silent Sports Trail System groomed for skiing.
- 2. Cassian Two-way Ski Trail
- 3. Nose Lake Ski Trail

(c) Ski trails can be crossed by other County approved recreational trails under the following conditions: (no changes to conditions 1 and 2 of section now numbered as c)

(d) The following activities are allowed on the Enterprise Winter Silent Sports Trail, when said trail is frozen, snow-covered, and periodically groomed for bicycling.

- 1. Cross-country skiing
- 2. Snowshoeing
- 3. Bicycling

(~~e~~) Use of trails in a manner or direction contrary to posted signs is prohibited.

(~~d~~) A non-transferable valid trail pass is required by individuals eighteen years of age and older (no changes to the rest of the section now numbered as f)

56 (e-g) Pet Regulations for Silent Sports Trails:

57

58 3. a. Pets are not allowed on the following ski trails: That portion of the  
59 Washburn Silent Sports Trail System maintained for skiing, ~~Washburn ski trail~~ and the  
60 Cassian Two-Way Ski Trail.

61 b. Pets are allowed on the following ski trails: Enterprise ~~Primitive Ski~~ Winter  
62 Silent Sports Trail, and the Nose Lake Ski Trail.

63

64 4. a. Pets are not allowed on ~~the Washburn Snowshoe Trail~~, that portion of the  
65 Washburn Silent Sports Trail System maintained for snowshoeing.

66

67 b. Pets are allowed on the following snowshoe trails: Enterprise ~~Primitive~~  
68 ~~Snowshoe~~ Winter Silent Sports Trail, Almon Park Wetland Trail, and the Almon Park  
69 Upland Trail.

70

71 Section 6. Section 14.15 (3)(a) of the General Code of Oneida County,  
72 Wisconsin, is amended as follows [additions noted by underline, deletions noted by  
73 strikethrough]:

74

75 No person shall ~~drive~~ operate any bicycle, four-wheel drive vehicle, passenger car, off-  
76 road vehicle, truck, all-terrain vehicle ~~(ATV'S)~~, utility terrain vehicle, or motorcycle on any  
77 approved snowmobile trails without the written permission of the land owner or lessee  
78 ~~Department~~, except for trail maintenance and/or inspection activities.

79

80 **Section 25.04 PENALTY PROVISIONS**

FORESTRY AND OUTDOOR RECREATION		Forfeiture	Total
14.13(20)(c)	<del>Skiing contrary to sign directions</del> <u>Crossing ski trail in a non-authorized manner.</u>	20.00	148.20
14.13(20)(d)	<del>Trail Pass Required</del> <u>Non-authorized activities on the Enterprise Winter Silent Sports Trail.</u>	<del>50.00</del> <u>20.00</u>	<del>186.00</del> <u>148.20</u>
14.13(20)(e)	<del>Dogs on ski trail prohibited</del> <u>Skiing contrary to sign directions</u>	<del>50.00</del> 20.00	<del>186.00</del> 148.20
<u>14.13(20)(f)</u>	<u>Trail Pass Required</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>186.00</u>
<u>14.13(20)(g)</u>	<u>Pets on ski trail prohibited</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>186.00</u>
14.15(3)(a)	Restricted use of snowmobile trails <del>bicycles</del> or <del>other</del> motorized vehicle traffic prohibited unless authorized	100.00	249.00

81 The balance of this section remains unchanged.

82

83 Approved by the Forestry, Land and Recreation Committee this 6th day of January, 2015.

84

85 **Consent Agenda Item: \_\_\_\_\_ YES \_\_\_\_\_ NO**

86

87 Vote Required: Majority = \_\_\_\_\_ 2/3 Majority = \_\_\_\_\_ 3/4 Majority = \_\_\_\_\_

88

89 The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_\_ as  
90 reviewed by the Corporation Counsel, \_\_\_\_\_, Date: \_\_\_\_\_

91

92 Offered and passage moved by: \_\_\_\_\_

93

Supervisor

94

Supervisor

95

Supervisor

96

97

Supervisor

98

99

100  
101  
102  
103  
104  
105  
106  
107  
108  
109  
110  
111  
112  
113  
114  
115  
116  
117  
118  
119  
120  
121  
122  
123

---

Supervisor

\_\_\_\_\_ Ayes

\_\_\_\_\_ Nays

\_\_\_\_\_ Absent

\_\_\_\_\_ Abstain

\_\_\_\_\_ Enacted

by the County Board of Supervisors this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2014.

\_\_\_\_\_ Defeated

---

Mary Bartelt, County Clerk

---

David Hintz, County Board Chair